2004

Behunin v. Behunin : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Petitioner filed a Petition to Modify the Divorce Decree in the above matter, and on July 7, 2004, the matter came to trial before the Honorable Stephen L Henroid of the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah. Marsha M. Lang represented the Respondent. The issue for trial was whether there has been a substantial change in the circumstances, which would warrant a change of custody from the Petitioner to the Respondent. The trial judge found such a substantial change and the Memorandum Decision is attached hereto as R.461. The Petitioner objected to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, said objections were denied on September 28, 2004. (R. 484).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Appellant filed a Motion to Modify the Divorce Decree in the above matter, asking for physical custody of the Appellee to be changed to physical custody to him. After a trial the judge of the Third Judicial District Court granted said Motion on September 28, 2004, which was the date of the trial judge denied the Appellee's Objection to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

The trial court found that there were substantial changes in circumstances that would warrant a change of physical custody, However, changes, whether substantial or not has ceased well before trial.

The trial courts decision (R. 461) does not correctly refer to the evidence at trial nor does it address the issue that the appellant's problems with raising the children had

ceased.

ARGUMENT

I. Were the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law supported by the trial testimony?

At the record of 461. The trial court found that the Petitioner “has moved five times and has had relationships with multiple men two of which are convicted felons.”

Testimony, which supported those finding, is (Tr. page 5 through 15).

The explanation for the Appellant’s movement is found at (Tr. page 117 through 120).

The Appellant initially moved because of harassment from the Appellee and his family (Tr. page 117 line 7). The next move was from Tremonton, Utah due to the exposure of domestic violence not in front of the children. (Tr. page 118 line 9). In July 2003, the Appellant moved to Magna (Tr. page 27-28). Since that time, the Appellant has maintained a stable and more consistent address. (Tr. page 127 through 128 lines 18 – 3).

The Memorandum Decision (rec.463) has indicated that the Appellant has been involved with two convicted felons.

The Appellee (Tr. page 7 lines 15 through 22) testified that the appellant had a relationship with a convicted felon in approximately February 2001. (Tr. page 9 lines 8). to August of 2001. (Tr. page 11 line 23).

The Appellant testified that her relationship with the first man (Tr. page 117 lines 23 through 24). The trial testimony however, indicated her relationship was short term (Tr. pages 117 through 118 lines 24 through 4). Moreover, no physical abuse was ever witnessed by the children (Tr. page 118 lines 11 through 12). The next relationship of the

appellant was (Tr. page 13 lines 12 through 20).

The Actual evidence was the Appellant's testimony and the only evidence concerning that relationship is as follows at (Tr. page 118 through 120)

had lived together again for approximately two months.

Q. So the total time you lived with him was how long?

A. About three months.

Q. And why did you break up?

A We were not getting along. He was more interested in bodybuilding. He was more interested in spending time with his friends, not necessarily looking for a job or employment

Q. Did he ever commit any violence on you?

A. At, one time.

Q. Was that in front of your children?

A. No, it was not.

Q. After he committed that violence on you, Did you ever see him again?

A..No - well, I saw him when the, a protective order was issued. I had to, I went to court for that and saw him there and that was the last time that I've seen him.

Q. He never lived with you after that?

A. No.

Q. When you left Tremonton, where did you go

A. To the Kathleen Robinson Hunstman building, apartment building

Q. How long did you stay there?

A. little, about 13 months.

Q. Now when did you marry this man, Steely?

A. January 7th, 2002.

Q. Was Mr. Steely, did Mr. Steely ever reside with you

A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. Because I felt that, for one I felt that Adult Probation & Parole was not appropriate for my children to witness, to be around, to see, to be involved with. Also, I felt that he needed to prove himself basically. We had talked and he knew what my, what my, what my reasons were. Those wee being that I, he needed to have a job. He needed to be able economically help support and be a part of the family. He needed to prove that he could act, and would be a positive role model in front and to my children. He needed to prove that he was going to programs doing his classes like we had discussed, because I felt that they were all beneficial and would help.

Q. Did ever, did he ever do any of those things?

A. No.

Q. Which of these gentleman was the one that used Dean Behunin's name to get an x-ray up at the hospital?

A. Larry Steely.

Q. Did you assist him in that?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Did you know that he had, did you know he was going to do that?

A. No

Q. How did he do it, if you know?

A. I asked him. He refused to tell me I kind, I figured out on my own, to my, best of my knowledge was I had boxes for storage and I had Dean and I's, mine's tax returns that we had done together and they were still in that box, which listed his social security number, his name, his address, his birth date, everything and that's the only way he could have got that information and after I had seen that, and believing that that's where the information came from, I went and blacked out everything.

Q. Jennifer, why did you marry him if you did not intend to live with him?

A. I married him as a means to show him my support in him, that I was, I was going to be there for him if he was willing to do what he said he was willing to do. It was my way to show that I'm gonna be there to do what I said that I would do. It was, it was my way to support him. He needed to see that support. He needed to see that on, I guess, a paper type basis, because he didn't know if he could believe me or not, and I wanted to show him that he could believe me, that he could believe in me, that this could very well happen. We could very well live together and be married and live a life as man and wife. But he needed to do his part too.

There is no evidence that the Appellant had any other romantic relationships, "Multiple men" as stated in the Memorandum Decision and Findings implies something more and her last relationships with any man ended when Mr. Steely went to prison in (Tr. page 29 lines 2 through 3 and the Appellant never lived with that man (see Tr. above). In 2002 the Appellant told Mr. Steely that the relationship was ended. (Tr. 134 lines 3 to 22.)

The point of Appellant's argument in this regard is that "Multiple men" is

misleading. Moreover, the more importantly there was no evidence of any relationship when the case came to trial on July 7, 2004. The Appellant had a three-month relationship with one man (see page 7 of this brief) and with a man with whom she never lived with. These were brief and past relationships that should not amount to changed circumstances.

II. THE MEMORDUM DECISION AT R. 461 CONCLUDES THAT THE APPELLANT HAS MOVED FIVE TIMES SINCE THE DIVORCE DECREE IN NOVEMBER 2000.

The evidence of the Appellee is that the Appellant has lived in Magna at the same address since July 2003. (Tr.26 lines 7 to 23). At the time of the trial the Appellant had been at the same address for one year and at the same job for three years. (Tr. at 163 to pages 165 line 10).

III. THE MEMORANDUM DECISION AT R. 463 AND THE FINDINGFS AT R.488 FOUND THAT THE APPELLANT HAD NOT FOLLOWED THROUGH WITH SPEECH THERAPY.

The only testimony offered by the Appellee concerning this issue is at page 67 and 68 of the trial transcript and specifically at page 68 lines 1 through 10. Where the custody evaluation admitted at page 68 line 1 that he was not fully aware of the Appellant's efforts at speech therapy by that he had concerns of the enough of time that it took to commence therapy.

The specific efforts of appellants are found at transcript page 120 line 25 to page 122 line 9. At page 121 lines 14 to page 122 line 19 the Appellant gave uncontroverted testimony that when she discovered the speech problem she took immediate and positive

steps to eliminate the problem. The Memorandum Decision at R.463 is plainly wrong that Appellant did not follow through with speech therapy.

As of the date of the trial (July 2004) there have no substantial changes in circumstances. The Appellant has a steady job and housing (Tr. 163 through 164 lines 24 through 20), (Tr. pages 117 through 119 lines 24 through 4). There have been no changes in those regards.

Appellant contends that “substantial” changes circumstances do not contemplate temporary and short-termed relationships nor is it that contemplate short-termed changes in residence, for obvious reasons, newly divorced custodial mothers experience periods of adjustments.

Although the application of the doctrine of res judicata in divorce actions and subsequent modification proceedings is distinguished because of equitable doctrine allowing court to reopen determinations upon showing of substantial change in circumstances, a custody decree which is predicated on a particular set of facts is res judicata and will not be modified absent a showing of substantial or material change in circumstances which warrants do so U.C.A 1953, 30-3-5(3) *Smith v. Smith, 1990, 793 P.2d 407*

In order to meet threshold requirement for a change of custody that substantial change in circumstances has occurred since time of last decree, party must show, in addition to existence and extent of the change, that change is significant in relation to the modification sought; the asserted change must, therefore, have some material relationship to and substantial effect on parenting abilities or functioning of the presently existing custodial relationship; in absence of an indication that change has or will have such effect, materiality requirement is not met; it is not; it is not sufficiently merely to allege a change which, although otherwise substantial, does not essentially affect the custodial relationship. *Becker vs. Becker, 1984, 694 P.2d 608*

IV. ATTORNEY FEES

Petitioner made a Motion for Attorney fees (R.437) and due to the differential income and the circumstances of this filing.