2004

# Jennifer Elaine Behunin v. Dean Farlan Behunin : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

### **STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION**

This is an appeal from a final judgment of Order of Modification of Decree of Divorce in the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, before the Honorable Stephen L. Henriod, entered on the 28<sup>th</sup> day of September, 2004.

The Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this appeal by virtue of Rule 3(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Annotated 78-2a-3(2)(h).

### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

The Respondent filed a Petition to Modify the Divorce Decree on October 10, 2002 requesting that the Court change primary physical custody of the two minor children to him. On July 7, 2004, the matter came to trial before the Honorable Stephen L. Henriod of the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah. Marsha M. Lang represented the Respondent. John R. Bucher represented the Petitioner. The issues at trial included whether there has been a substantial change in the circumstances which would warrant a change of physical and residential custody from the Petitioner to the Respondent and whether it was in the best interests of the minor children to change primary residential custody to the Respondent. The trial judge found that a substantial change of circumstances had occurred in the parenting ability of both Petitioner and Respondent and that it was in the best interests of the children that Respondent be awarded physical custody.

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

The trial Court was correct in finding that there were substantial changes in circumstances based upon the changes in parenting abilities of the Appellant and the Appellee and in consideration of the best interests of the minor children. The Court's decision was based on solid testamentary evidence, and exhibits, at trial, especially the custody evaluation. The Court's decision was consistent and followed well established Utah case law, especially Hogge, Elmer and Shioji.

## **ARGUMENT**

### **I. THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW WERE SUPPORTED BY TRIAL TESTIMONY**

Appellant argues that the Court made certain findings that were unsupported by the testimony at trial. Appellant especially found issue with the findings that the Appellant had moved five times and had multiple relationship, two of them with felons. Appellant argues that the Court's Findings regarding her lack of attention to Jake's speech therapy was not supported by the record.

In examining the Findings of Fact which state that Appellant "has moved five times and has had relationships with multiple men, two of which are felons", Appellee finds sufficient testimony evidence to support these Findings as follows:

(1) "moved five times"

At the time of divorce, in November, 2000, Appellant moved from the marital residence to West Valley (Tr pages 7-8). After two months, in January, 2001, Appellant then moved to Tremonton (Tr page 8). In August 2001, Appellant moved to Salt Lake City to the Katherine Huntsman Building (Tr page 12). In August, 2002, Appellant moved to Ogden (Tr page 14). In July, 2003, Appellant moved to Magna (Tr, pages 27-28). That constitutes five moves supported from the uncontroverted testimony of both parties.

Appellant is incorrect when she states that the five moves are not supported by testimony evidence. In Appellant's direct testimony at trial she reports that she lived in West Valley City, Tremonton and Salt Lake City by 2002 (Tr pages 117-118). Appellant admits Jake was enrolled in Monroe Elementary (Ogden)(Tr page 121) and then that he was enrolled in Magna Elementary (Magna)(Tr page 122). Therefore, the five moves were testified to by Appellant, herself.

(2) "had relationships with multiple men, two of which are convicted felons"

As far as the Finding concerning "multiple men", the direct testimony of Appellant supports her relationships with Darrell James McGuire with whom she and the children resided on and off from February 2001 until she moved to Salt Lake City to reside at the Kathleen Huntsman Building. (Tr page 117) and (Tr pages 138, 139). Appellant admitted that she married Mr. Steeley, a felon, on January 7, 2002. (Tr page 18). Appellee testified that his children talked about being abused by Alan Valdez (Tr page 29 to 32), a "boyfriend"

or "close friend" of Appellant. Appellant admitted Mr. Valdez is "a friend of mine" but claims she didn't live with him (Tr page 126). Mr. Valdez was a witness at trial that admitted to having a relationship with Appellant and her children (Tr pages 160-163).<sup>38</sup> The Court was correct in its findings that Appellant has had relationships with multiple men, two of which were felons.

Appellant argued that there was no evidence of any relationship when the case came to trial on July 7, 2004, however, Appellant admitted at trial that she remained married to Mr. Steeley.

In summary, the testimony evidence alone supports the Findings of the Court that Appellant "moved five times and has relationships with multiple men, two of which she lived with, who were felons". She married one of the felons and remained married to him at the time of trial.

(3) Jake's speech therapy

To support her claim that she had followed through with Jake's speech therapy, Appellant refers to her testimony in the transcript on pages 120-122. Careful examination of Appellant's testimony indicates she had been aware of Jake's problems since he "started speaking". She admits the Head Start program in Ogden first put Jake in a speech therapy class. At the time of trial, Jake was enrolled in Magna Elementary. Appellant gave no detailed testimony about his enrollment in any class at Magna for speech therapy. The record does not show that Appellant took "immediate steps to correct the problem". The Court is



correct in its evaluation concerning the effort Appellant put forth concerning Jake's speech therapy and her follow up.

## II. APPELLANT IS NOT SUBSTANTIALLY EMPLOYED IN A STABLE JOB

Appellant on page 11 of her brief concludes that there has been no substantial change of circumstances since the divorce because Appellant has had a "steady job" and "housing". To support the "steady job", Appellant refers to Mr. Jeppson's testimony on pages 63-64 of the transcript. Mr. Jeppson testified that Appellant works at the Redwood Lounge as a "janitor". Mr. Jeppson, in his direct testimony, does not indicate how long Appellant has worked for him on how many hours per week she presently works for him. He did not testify about how many hours per week she had worked for him in the past. He did not testify about her earning history. At trial, the Court questioned Mr. Jeppson (Tr pages 164-165). He told the Court that Appellant earned about \$120.00 per month working five or six hours per week (Tr pages 164-165). The Appellant cannot claim this is a "steady job" as is usually the definition of a "steady job" as being forty hours per week. Appellant is not substantially employed at a stable job.

## III. THE COURT MADE ADDITIONAL FINDINGS THAT SUPPORT A SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

On pages 1, 2, 3 and 4 of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Court made additional findings regarding the parenting skills of both parties that support his decision.

Findings of Fact concerning Appellant's parenting skills are:

"(a) Appellant does not follow through with Jake's speech therapy;

(b) Appellant has been involved with two convicted felons, one of whom was sent back to prison after stealing Appellee's identity;

(c) the children are exposed to conflict in Appellant's marriage to Mr. Steeley;

(d) Appellant has moved five times;"

The Court also finds that the Appellee's circumstances are more favorable to custody than they were at the time of divorce as follows:

"(a) Appellee has maintained consistent visitation with the children;

(b) Appellee has good parenting skills, providing discipline and guidance;

(c) Appellee's life has been much more stable since separation;

(d) Appellee's wife has good parenting skills and has taken an active role in parenting."

The Court also notes that at the time of divorce the parties stipulated to joint legal custody with primary physical custody with Appellant.

#### IV. UTAH CASE LAW SUPPORTS THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Hogge v. Hogge, 649 P.2d 51 (Utah1982) is the leading authority in Utah on the changed circumstances test. Hogge held that: "parent seeking a change in custody must first establish there has been a substantial change of circumstances and then address the best

interests of the child". In Becker v. Becker, 694 P.2d 608 (Utah, 1984) the Court explained the necessary nexus between the changed circumstances and the welfare of the child:

"The asserted change, must, therefore, have some material relationship to and substantial effect on the parenting ability or the functioning of the presently existing custodial relationship" Id, page 610.

In Elmer v. Elmer, 776 P.2d 599 (Utah, 1989) the Court states: "But that does not mean that the circumstances of the noncustodial parent are irrelevant to the inquiry". See Kramer v. Kramer, 738 P.2d 624 at p 629 (Utah 1987)." (overruling or qualifying Becker)

Elmer further states on page 102:

"Furthermore the changed circumstances rule should be applied with the regard for the policies it was designed to further. Two principle policies are served by the rule. First, the emotional, intellectual and moral development of a child depends upon a reasonable degree of stability on its relationship to important people and to its environment. Second, the Courts typically favor the one-time adjudication of a matter to prevent the undue burdening of the courts and the harassing of parties by repetitive actions."

Elmer further holds:

"the res judicata aspect of the rule must always be subservant to the best interests of the child". In the present case, the original decree was not adjudicated, but based on stipulation, and therefore the res judicata aspect is at low ebb.

The trial Court in this case included the following statement in the substantial change

of circumstances section of its decision:

"They (the children) need guidance, structure and discipline, as well as educational support, positive role models who will teach them values and appropriate conduct. They also need stability and consistency".

The trial Court applied this standard supported most directly by the dicta and holdings in Elmer, and found the Appellant's circumstances had changed unfavorably to the best interests of the children. The Court concluded that Appellee's circumstances had changed favorably in regard to the best interests of the children. According to Elmer, this is a correct application to the substantial change of circumstances test.